DATE:

TO:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

GREG COX
First District

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

Second District

PAM SLATER-PRICE
Third District

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT RON ROBERTS

Fourth District

BILL HORN
Fifth District

June 24, 2009

San Diego County Air Pollution Control Board

SUBJECT: NOTICED PUBLIC HEARING - ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 —

FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (Districts: All)

SUMMARY:

Overview

Dust released from the soil during construction and demolition activity is one of the
largest sources of particulate matter emissions in the region and the most frequent
source of complaints about air pollution. These fugitive dust particulates can cause
respiratory illness and can damage property and reduce visibility.

San Diego County does not yet meet the State clean air standards for particulate matter,
although federal standards are currently being met. Per State law, this lack of
attainment requires the District to implement all feasible measures to attain the
standard.

For this reason, adoption by the Air Pollution Control Board is requested for proposed
new Rule 55. Rule 55, if adopted, would regulate fugitive dust emissions from
construction sites by restricting the level of construction-related fugitive dust emissions
allowed to cross onto adjacent properties, but leaves the selection of dust control
measures to the discretion of the project owner/operator. In contrast to rules of other
California air districts with worse fugitive dust problems, Rule 55 does not require
submittal of dust control plans or record keeping of dust control efforts. Further,
homeowner operations are exempt but remain subject to existing Rule 51, which
prohibits public nuisance.  Industry and government agencies were consulted
throughout the rule development process. Compliance will not be onerous or costly
because the requirements are consistent with existing dust control requirements and
practices.

Recommendation(s)

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER

1. Find that the adoption of Rule 55 is categorically exempt from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California Code of Regulations,
Title 14, Section 15308, as an action taken to assure protection of the environment
where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the



SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 — FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (District:
All)

environment, and pursuant to California Code of Regulations Title 14,
Section 15061(b)(3), since it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility
that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment.

2. Adopt the resolution entitled Resolution Adopting Rule 55 into Regulation 1V of
the Rules and Regulations of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District.

Fiscal Impact
Rule 55 will not have a significant fiscal impact on the Air Pollution Control District
and will be implemented and enforced with existing staff.

Business Impact Statement

Rule 55 will not adversely impact the business community. Affected industries include
small and large building contractors and development companies, and government
agencies undertaking or contracting construction/demolition activities. The proposed
dust prevention standards and measures are consistent with existing State, regional, and
local regulatory requirements for fugitive dust control.

Advisory Board Statement

At its meeting on April 8, 2009, with a quorum present, the Air Pollution Control
District Advisory Committee expressed support of the Air Pollution Control District’s
recommendations.

BACKGROUND:

State law (Senate Bill 656, 2003 Statutes) requires that air districts that do not meet State
Particulate Matter Standards adopt additional control requirements after reviewing a Statewide
list of the most readily available and cost-effective control measures being implemented by any
California air district. The San Diego County Air Pollution Control District (District) evaluated
the list and determined that most measures are already being implemented in San Diego County
(December 14, 2005, APCB #2). However, the District currently does not have a rule to control
construction-related fugitive dust.

Rule 55 will provide an efficient method to address complaints of fugitive dust emanating from
construction sites. The District currently relies on Rule 50 (Visible Emissions) and Rule 51
(Nuisance) to address such complaints. However, those rules do not specifically address
construction-related fugitive dust and often require multiple site visits to validate compliance or
non-compliance. Rule 55 specifically addresses fugitive dust from construction activity and will
provide more immediate authority to resolve related complaints creating efficiency for the
District and industry.

Rule 55 will minimize compliance costs through consistency with existing dust control
requirements and practices. Examples of such requirements include the California Vehicle Code,
which prohibits dirt track-out onto public roads, storm water pollution prevention standards
established by water agencies, and municipal grading ordinances, which require dust suppression.

-2-



SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 — FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (District:
All)

In the process of developing Rule 55, District staff conducted substantial outreach to the
construction industry and government agencies, including the San Diego County Building
Industry Association, Engineering & General Contractors Association, Associated General
Contractors, Caltrans, the County Department of Public Works, the City of San Diego, and
several other cities. A Public Workshop was also held. No substantive issues were raised and
there was general concurrence that Rule 55 compliance will not be onerous or costly because the
requirements are consistent with existing dust control requirements and practices.

Compliance with Board Policy on Adopting New Rules

On February 2, 1993 (APCB #2), the Board directed that, with the exception of a regulation
requested by business or a regulation for which a socioeconomic impact assessment is not
required, no new or revised regulation shall be implemented unless specifically required by
federal or State law. Proposed new Rule 55 is required pursuant to State law, which calls for
adoption of every feasible control measure to accelerate progress toward achieving ambient air
quality standards for airborne particulate matter. Therefore, implementation of the proposed rule
is consistent with the Board directive.

Environmental Statement

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires environmental review for certain
actions. The District conducted a preliminary review to determine CEQA applicability to the
proposed adoption of Rule 55. Rule 55 was developed pursuant to State law (Health and Safety
Code 39614), which calls for adoption of every feasible control measure to accelerate progress
toward achieving air quality standards for particulate matter. Rule 55 will protect public health
and the environment by promoting reductions in fugitive dust emissions from construction sites.
The adoption of Rule 55 is exempt from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Section 15308, as an action taken to assure protection of the environment
where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the environment.
Additionally, Rule 55 is reflective of dust control standards, which are already required by other
agencies. Thus, it will not result in significantly different dust control practices on the part of the
regulated community. Therefore, the project is also exempt pursuant to California Code of
Regulations Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3), since it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment.

Linkage to the County of San Diego’s Strategic Plan

The County's five-year strategic plan includes an Environment Initiative to protect air quality and
quality of life. Proposed new Rule 55 will reduce impacts on public health, property, and the
environment, and reduce regional particulate matter emissions without negatively impacting the
local business community. The rule balances air quality preservation, public health protection,
and economic development needs.



SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 — FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (District:
All)

Respectfully submitted,

A edee NS0 poe ool

CHANDERA L. WALLAR . ROBERT KARD
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer Air Pollution Control Officer
ATTACHMENT(S)

Attachment A — Resolution Adopting New Rule 55 in Regulation 1V of the Rules and
Regulations of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District.
Attachment B — Workshop Report



SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 — FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (District:

All)
AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET
CONCURRENCE(S)

COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW [X]Yes

Written disclosure per County Charter

§1000.1 required? [l Yes [X]No
GROUP/AGENCY FINANCE DIRECTOR [1 Yes [XIN/A
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER [1 Yes [XIN/A

Requires Four Votes [] Yes [X]No
GROUP/AGENCY INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR [1 Yes [XIN/A
COUNTY TECHNOLOGY OFFICE [1 Yes [XIN/A
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES [1 Yes [XIN/A

Other Concurrence(s): N/A

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Air Pollution Control District, County of San Diego

CONTACT PERSON(S):

ROBERT J. KARD

Name Name
(858) 586-2700

Phone Phone
(858) 586-2701

Fax Fax
0-176

Mail Station Mail Station
Robert.Kard@sdcounty.ca.gov

E-mail E-mail

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

ROBERT J. KARD
Air Pollution Control Officer



SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF NEW RULE 55 — FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL (District:
All)

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET
(continued)

PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS:

December 14, 2005 (APCB #2), Approval of Proposed Measures to Reduce Particulate Matter in
San Diego County.

BOARD POLICIES APPLICABLE:
N/A

BOARD POLICY STATEMENTS:
N/A

CONTRACT AND/OR REQUISITION NUMBER(S):



Resolution No. 09-113
06/24/09 (AP2) ATTACHMENT A

Re Rules and Regulatiohs of the)
Air Pollution Control District . . )
of San Diego County ......... )

RESOLUTION ADOPTING RULE 55 - FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL,
OF REGULATION IV OF THE RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT

On motion of Member __cox , seconded by Member Roberts , the
following resolution is adopted:

WHEREAS, the San Diego County Air Pollution Control Board, pursuant to Section 40702 of
the California Health and Safety Code, adopted Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control
District of San Diego County; and

WHEREAS, said Board now desires to amend said Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, notice has been given and a public hearing has been held relating to the
amendment of said Rules and Regulations pursuant to Section 40725 of the Health and Safety Code;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 40727 of the Health and Safety Code, the San Diego County
Air Pollution Control Board makes the following findings:

(1) (Necessity) The adoption of proposed new Rule 55 is necessary to comply with Health
and Safety Code Section 39614;

(2) (Authority) The adoption of proposed new Rule 55 is authorized by Health and Safety
Code section 40702;

(3) (Clarity) Proposed new Rule 55 can be easily understood by persons directly affected
by it;

(4) (Consistency) The adoption of proposed new Rule 55 is in harmony with, and not in
conflict with or contrary to, existing statutes, court decisions, and State and federal

regulations;

(5) (Non-duplication) The adoption of proposed new Rule 55 will not duplicate existing o
Air Pollution Control District or federal requirements;

(6) (Reference) The adoption of proposed new Rule 55 is necessary to comply with Health
and Safety Code Section 39614;

Resolution — Rule 55



WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds pursuant to Health and Safety
Code Section 40001 that proposed new Rule 55 will facilitate the attainment of ambient air
quality standards for airborne particulate matter; and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds that an assessment of
socioeconomic impacts pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 40728.5 does not apply
to the adoption of proposed new Rule 55 because the rule is consistent with existing State
and municipal requirements for fugitive dust control and will not significantly affect air
quality or emission limitations; and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds that the comparative
analysis pursuant to the State Health and Safety Code Section 40727.2 is not required
because there are no federal or other Air Pollution Control District regulations requiring
fugitive dust control at construction and demolition sites; and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds that the incremental cost-
effectiveness analysis pursuant to the Health and Safety Code Section 40920.6(a) does not
apply to particulate matter control measures and therefore does not apply to proposed new

Rule 55, and

WHEREAS, the adoption of Rule 55 is exempt from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section
15308, as an action taken to assure protection of the environment where the regulatory
process involves procedures for protection of the environment, and pursuant to California
Code of Regulations Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3), since it can be seen with certainty that
there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the
environment.

NOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San Diego County Air
Pollution Control Board that the Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control District of San
Diego County be and hereby are amended as follows:

1.  Proposed new Rule 55 is to read as follows:

RULE 55 FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL
(Adopted (date of adoption); Effective (6 months from date of adoption))

(a) APPLICABILITY

Except as provided in Section (b), the provisions of this rule shall apply to any commercial
construction or demolition activity capable of generating fugitive dust emissions, including
active operations, open storage piles, and inactive disturbed areas. Activities subject to this
regulation are also subject to the applicable requirements of Rule 50 (Visible Emissions) and
Rule 51 (Nuisance).

Resolution — Rule 55 A-2



(b) EXEMPTIONS
The provisions of this rule shall not apply to the following:

(1) Noncommercial construction or demol_ition activities in support of any structure
designed for and used exclusively as a dwelling for not more than four families;

(2) Emergency operations conducted during and in response to life-threatening
situations, or in conjunction with any officially declared disaster or state of emergency;

(3) Active operations conducted by essential service utilities to provide electricity, .
natural gas, telephone, water and/or sewer during periods of unplanned service outages and
emergency disruptions;

(4) Any active operation, open storage pile, or inactive disturbed area for which the
owner/operator can demonstrate that necessary fugitive dust preventive or mitigating
actions are in conflict with the California or federal Endangered Species Acts, or a local,
state, or federal water quality requirement;

(5) Explosive blasting operations. However, any other activities capable of
generating fugitive dust emissions and performed in conjunction with explosive blasting,
such as vehicle transport of materials produced by blasting operations, are not exempt from
complying with the provisions of this rule or other applicable rules;

(6) Abrasive blasting operations regulated by Rule 71 (Abrasive Blasting);

(7) Activities subject to an Air Pollution Control District permit to operate;

(8) Permanent unpaved roads.

(c) DEFINITIONS
For the purpose of this rule, the following definitions shall apply:

(1) “Active Operation” means any construction or demolition activity capable of
generating fugitive dust. This includes but is not limited to, earth-moving activities, and
heavy- and light-duty vehicular movement on disturbed surface areas or on unpaved roads.

(2) “Bulk Materials” means any material which can emit fugitive dust when
stored, disturbed, or handled, and is un-packaged. Bulk material includes, but is not limited

to, sand, gravel, soil, aggregate material, and other organic or inorganic particulate matter.

(3) “Commercial” means work conducted for financial compensation by other than
a tenant or property owner.

S

Resolution — Rule 55 A-3



(4) “Construction or Demolition Activity” means any on-site activity preparatory
to or for the purpose of building, altering, rehabilitating, raising, tearing down, breaking
into pieces, or improving property, including, but not limited to, the following activities:
grading, excavation, loading, transporting, crushing, cutting, planing, shaping or ground
breaking.

(5) “Dust” means minute solid particles released into the air by natural forces or by
mechanical processes including, but not limited to: crushing, grinding, milling, drilling,
demolishing, shoveling, conveying, covering, bagging, and sweeping.

(6) “Earth-moving Activities” means activities that include, but are not limited to,
grading, earth cutting and filling operations, loading or unloading of dirt or bulk materials,
adding to or removing bulk materials from open storage piles, or soil mulching.

(7) “Emergency” means an immediate threat to human health or property.

(8) “Erosion” means the movement and deposition of land surface materials by
water or wind primarily as a result of human activities.

(9) “Inactive Disturbed Area” means a portion of the earth's surface that has been
physically moved, uncovered, destabilized, or otherwise modified from its undisturbed
natural soil condition, thereby increasing the potential for emissions of fugitive dust. This
definition excludes those areas that have:

(i) Been restored to a natural state, such that the vegetative ground cover and
soil characteristics are similar to adjacent or nearby natural conditions;

(i) Been paved or otherwise covered by a permanent structure; or

(iii) Established a vegetative ground cover equivalent to at least 70% percent of
the background coverage for nearby undisturbed areas.

(10) “Open Storage Pile” means any accumulation of bulk material with five
percent or greater silt content which is not fully enclosed, covered or chemically stabilized,
and which attains a height of three feet or more and a total surface area of 150 or more
square feet. Silt content level is assumed to be five percent or greater unless a person can
show, by sampling and analysis in accordance with ASTM Method C-136 or other
equivalent method approved in writing by the California Air Resources Board, that the silt

" content is less than five percent.

(11) “Owner/operator” means any person who owns, leases, operates, controls, or
supervises any activity subject to this rule or any person who owns, leases, operates,
controls, or supervises the site at which any activity subject to this rule occurs, or both.

(12) “Particulate Matter” means any finely divided material which exists as a solid
or liquid at standard conditions, excluding uncombined water.

Resolution — Rule 55 A-4



Resolution — Rule 55

(13) “Paved Road” means an improved street, highway, alley, public way, or
easement that is covered by concrete, asphaltic concrete, fresh or recycled asphalt, or
rubberized asphalt, excluding access roadways that connect a facility with a public paved
roadway and are not open to through traffic.

(14) “Permanent Unpaved Road” means any unsealed or dirt roadway that is not
covered by concrete, asphaltic concrete, fresh or recycled asphalt, or rubberized asphalt,
.and which is designed and intended to remain unsealed and uncovered indefinitely. This
definition excludes public or private roads undergoing construction or resurfacing.

(15) “Person” means any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership,
business trust, corporation, company, contractor, supplier, installer, user or owner, or any
state or local government agency or public district and any officer or employee thereof, or
the federal government and any officers or employees thereof to the extent authorized by
federal law, or any other entity whatsoever which is recognized by law as the subject of
rights and duties.

(16) “Property Line” means the boundaries of an area in which either a person
causing the fugitive dust emissions or a person allowing such emissions has the legal
.control or possession. This may include all or portions of a legal parcel or parcels as
defined by the San Diego County Assessor.

(17) “Track-Out/Carry-Out” means any bulk materials that adhere to and
agglomerate on the exterior surfaces of motor vehicles and/or equipment (including tires),
or are inadvertently carried out, and that fall onto a paved road, creating visible roadway
dust.

~ (18) “Visible Dust Emissions” means any solid particulate matter that is visually
detectable in the air without the aid of instruments other than corrective lenses.

(19) “Visible Roadway Dust” means any sand, soil, dirt, or other solid particulate
matter which is visible upon paved public road surfaces and which can be removed by a
vacuum sweeper, or a wet sweeper under normal operating conditions..

(d) STANDARDS

(1) Airborne Dust Beyond the Property Line: No person shall engage in
construction or demolition activity subject to this rule in a manner that discharges visible
dust emissions into the atmosphere beyond the property line for a period or periods
aggregating more than 3 minutes in any 60 minute period.

(2) Track-Out/Carry-Qut: Visible roadway dust as a result of active operations,
spillage from transport trucks, erosion, or track-out/carry-out shall:

A-5



(i) be minimized by the use of any of the following or equally effective track-
out/carry-out and erosion control measures that apply to the project or operation:
track-out grates or gravel beds at each egress point, wheel-washing at each egress
during muddy conditions, soil binders, chemical soil stabilizers, geotextiles,
mulching, or seeding; and for outbound transport trucks, using secured tarps or cargo
covering, watering, or treating of transported material; and

(i) be removed at the conclusion of each work day when active operations
cease, or every 24 hours for continuous operations. If a street sweeper is used to
remove any track-out/carry-out, only PM10-efficient street sweepers certified to meet
the most current South Coast Air Quality Management District Rule 1186
requirements shall be used. The use of blowers for removal of track-out/carry-out is
prohibited under any circumstances.

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that Rule 69.2.1 of Regulation IV shall
take effect 12 months from date of adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Air Pollution Control Board of the San Diego County
Air Pollution Control District, State of California, this _24th day of __ June , 2009,
by the following votes:
AYES:  Cox, Jacob, Slater-Price, Roberts, Horn

'STATE OF CALIFORNIA) APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY
County of San Diego)> COUNTYCOQUNSEL |

b

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct cop,y of the
Original Resolution entered in the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors.

THOMAS J. PASTUSZKA
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By: Bl e B c,Qm»\OA

Kellie Barclay, Deputy

Resolution No. 09-113

06/24/09 (APZ?
Resolution’— Rufe 55



ATTACHMENT B

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

PROPOSED NEW RULE 55 - FUGITIVE DUST CONTROL

WORKSHOP REPORT

A workshop notice was mailed or e-mailed to all identified individuals, building industry
associations, and government agencies in San Diego County that may be subject to proposed
new Rule 55 — Fugitive Dust Control. Notices were also provided to the California Air
Resources Board (ARB) and the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board.

The workshop was held on March 3, 2009, and was attended by 20 people. Written comments

were received after the workshop. The comments and Air Pollution Control District (District)
responses are as follows:

1. WORKSHOP COMMENT

How will the rule be enforced?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

With the exception of track-out/carry-out onto public roads, the rule specifies a standard of no
visible emissions crossing a property boundary for more than 3 minutes in a 60 minute period.
Inspectors responding to a complaint, for example, will determine by direct observation whether
this standard is being violated, and if so, take appropriate enforcement action. For track-
out/carry-out, the rule requires specific measures to “minimize” track-out/carry-out, and clean-up
of the roadway if it occurs. An inspector will determine if these measures are being
implemented, and if not, determine appropriate compliance action.

2, WORKSHOP COMMENT

What are the penalties for failing to comply with the rule?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The amount of a fine will depend on individual circumstances of the violation. Maximum
penalties and circumstances to be considered in determining the fine amount are governed by
State law (Health and Safety Code Section 42400 et seq.).

B-1



Workshop Report
Rule 55

3. WORKSHOP COMMENT

Unlike fugitive dust control rules of other California air districts, the proposed rule does not
specify a distance of track-out that triggers the clean-up requirement.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

That is correct. The proposed rule specifies that track-out/carry-out must be “minimized” using
the applicable specified measures, and removed at the conclusion of each work day when active
operations cease, or every 24 hours for continuous operations. By comparison, some other
districts further require immediate clean-up of track-out/carry-out when it extends beyond a
specified distance.

4. WORKSHOP COMMENT

If a non-compliant street sweeper is used, will the operator, owner, or someone else receive the
Notice of Violation?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The operator, owner, or both could receive a Notice of Violation,

St WORKSHOP COMMENT

There may be contractors or agencies for which the purchase of compliant street sweepers would
be a financial hardship. The District should consider allowing a two-year period for obtaining a
compliant street sweeper.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District disagrees. The District has surveyed many businesses and cities, and has yet to find
one that does not already use compliant street sweepers. Therefore, the District will not be
delaying compliance with this provision. It should be noted that the rule does not take effect
until 6-months after the date of adoption by the Air Pollution Control Board. In addition,
operators/owners may petition for a temporary variance from the District's Hearing Board, if
necessary.

6. WORKSHOP COMMENT

Our company constructs many linear projects, spread out over long distances. It would be
difficult for us to comply with the provision requiring street sweeping every 24 hours for

B-2



Workshop Report
Rule 55

continuous operations, without purchasing more street sweeping equipment. Can the rule be
written to be flexible on this requirement?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The requirement, as currently proposed, is considered feasible based on similar and more
stringent requirements of other California air districts, and therefore will not be amended.
Further, the proposed provision is more lenient than the existing State law requirement to remove
materials immediately (California Vehicle Code Section 23113).

7. WORKSHOP COMMENT

The term “visible roadway dust” is ambiguous, since dirt may still be visible after the roadway
has been swept.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The rule's definition of “visible roadway dust” includes the phrase “which can be removed by a
vacuum sweeper, or a wet sweeper under normal operating conditions.” Therefore, dirt that is
still visible after a sweeper has been used under normal operating conditions is not included in
the definition and would not trigger a violation. The operator should consider this if he/she
chooses another clean-up method, such as sweeping by hand-held appliance.

8. WORKSHOP COMMENT

The track-out/carry-out measures specified in provision (d)(2) may not constitute all possible
cleanup methods. This provision should be amended to add “not limited to the following
methods”.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District agrees. The rule will be amended to add language allowing measures that are of
equivalent effectiveness to those listed.

9. WORKSHOP COMMENT

Are the requirements for removal of roadway track-out typically specified by public agencies in
their contracts with construction contractors?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

Yes, our research suggests this is usually indicated clearly in such contracts.

B-3



Workshop Report
Rule 55

10. WORKSHOP COMMENT

The rule does not address windy conditions. Can you include a provision to suspend the rule
when the wind speed is above 15 mph?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District cannot include the requested language. Activities which cause excessive visible
dust emissions during windy periods should be mitigated or temporarily suspended to avoid a
violation.

11.  WORKSHOP COMMENT

The rule applies to “active” operations. However, are disturbed, inactive sites subject to
violation during high winds, even if they are not active?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

Yes. The rule was intended to prevent wind-generated dust from both active and inactive
disturbed sites. The rule will be amended to clarify that it applies to previously active, but
currently inactive sites as well as active sites.

12, WORKSHOP COMMENT

Can the rule be changed to be sensitive to possible future water rationing?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The rule allows operators/owners to choose the most cost-effective dust prevention measures. If
there is an alternative more economical than water, assuming it were rationed, then the operator
is free to use it without the need for a specific rule provision.

13. WORKSHOP COMMENT

Will the District be maintaining a list of recommended chemical dust suppressant products?

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District will not be endorsing or recommending particular chemical dust suppressants.
However, there is considerable information on the internet regarding the environmental impacts

B-4



Workshop Report
Rule 55

and effectiveness of different products. Sources include the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (http://www.epa.gov/esd/cmb/pdf/dust.pdf), and individual states (e.g., Washington:
www.ecy.wa.gov/pubs/96433.pdf) and cities (e.g., Albuquerque:
www.cabg.gov/airquality/fugitivedustcontrol.html).

14. WRITTEN COMMENT

The rule does not address public dirt roads, off-road recreation, and agricultural operations as
sources of fugitive dust. These should be covered by the rule also.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District has initially focused on construction/demolition sites to address the largest source of
fugitive dust in the region, as well as the largest source of air quality complaints received by the
District. The District may consider addressing other sources of fugitive dust in future rule
development. Further, all sources of air pollution, including fugitive dust sources identified in
the comment, are prohibited from creating a public nuisance, pursuant to existing Rule 51
(Nuisance).

1S.  WRITTEN COMMENT

In provision (d)(1), Airborne Dust Beyond the Property Line, the 10% opacity threshold is
difficult for a layperson to understand and measure.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The District agrees. The intent of the 10% opacity standard was to regulate visible dust
emissions. The rule will be amended to change the standard to “visible dust emissions” since
this term is more widely understood.

16. WRITTEN COMMENT

Is it correct that the rule does not apply to mineral industries with APCD permits? If so, this
should be clarified by adding the following to the Exemptions section:

(7) Activities such as grading, excavation, loading, transporting, crushing, cutting,
planing, shaping, or ground breaking that occur at stationary sources, which have
valid San Diego APCD permits and are subject to applicable fugitive dust rules
(Rule 50, Rule 51, site specific dust opacity conditions, etc.).

B-5



Workshop Report

Rule 55

DISTRICT RESPONSE

Mineral facilities holding a District permit are not subject to this rule, except when a mineral
industry facility undertakes a construction project. The rule is clarified by adding an exemption
in subsection (b)(7).

17. WRITTEN COMMENT

The rule as written could be construed to apply to military munitions training activity. A few
minor changes to provision (c)(4) would remove the ambiguity:

(D
2)
()
(4)

©)

After the words "preparatory to or," delete the words "related to the"

and insert the words "for the purpose of,"

Change the word "alteration" to "altering,"

Change the word "rehabilitation" to "rehabilitating,"

Delete the word "demolition" and insert the words "razing, tearing down, breaking
to pieces," and :

Change the words "improvement of" to "improving."

DISTRICT RESPONSE

The rule will be amended to incorporate the suggested clarifications.

18. ARB COMMENT

A requirement should be added to prevent dust from spilling or being blown out from outbound
trucks carrying bulk materials.

DISTRICT RESPONSE

Although the California Vehicle Code (Section 23114) already prohibits spilling aggregate
materials onto a roadway, the suggested provision will be added to the rule requirements for
track-out/carry-out.

RA:RR:AH:jlm

04/03/09

B-6



